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[Approval of a 90-Day Extension for Historic Preservation Commission to Respond to 
Landmark Designation Initiation of Alexandria Theater (File No. 230266)] 
 

Resolution extending by 90 days the prescribed time within which the Historic 

Preservation Commission to respond to landmark designation initiation from the Board 

of Supervisors (File No. 230266). 

 

WHEREAS, On March 7, 2023, Supervisor Chan introduced legislation to initiate the 

Landmark designation of Alexandria Theater, located on the northwest corner of Geary Blvd. 

and 18th Ave., Assessor’s Parcel Block No. 1450, Lot No. 048; and 

WHEREAS On March 7, 2023, the Board referred the resolution for adoption without 

committee reference at the next board meeting; and 

WHEREAS, On April 13, 2023, the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors referred the 

proposed ordinance to the Historic Preservation Commission; and 

WHEREAS, The Historic Preservation Commission shall, in accordance with Planning 

Code Section 1004.2(b), respond to landmark designations initiations from the Board within 

90 days from the date of referral of the proposed landmark designation or modification by the 

Board to the Commission; and  

WHEREAS, On March 14, 2023, the Board voted unanimously to adopt the Resolution 

to initiate Landmark Designation, and on March 24, 2023, Resolution No. 122-23 became 

effective (Board File No. 230266); and 

WHEREAS, Failure of the Historic Preservation Commission to act within 180 days 

shall be deemed to constitute approval of the landmark designation; and 

WHEREAS, The Board, in accordance with Planning Code, Section 306.4(d), may, by 

Resolution, extend the prescribed time within which the Planning Commission is to render its 
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decision on proposed amendments to the Planning Code that the Board of Supervisors 

initiates; and 

WHEREAS, On May 16, 2023, Supervisor Chan requested additional time for the 

Historic Preservation Commission to respond to the landmark designation initiation for 

Alexandria Theater from the Board of Supervisors; and 

WHEREAS, On August 16, 2023, Supervisor Chan requested a continuance at the 

Historic Preservation Commission as the property owner filed an appeal at the Board of 

Appeals; and 

WHEREAS, On September 20, 2023, Supervisor Chan requested a continuance at the 

Historic Preservation Commission as the property owner and her office agreed to explore a 

Development Agreement for the property; and 

WHEREAS, The Board deems it appropriate in this instance to grant to the Historic 

Preservation Commission additional time to review the proposed landmark designation and 

render its decision; now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That by this Resolution, the Board hereby extends the prescribed time 

within which the Historic Preservation Commission may render its decision on the proposed 

Ordinance for approximately 90 additional days, until January 8, 2024. 
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August 3, 2023 
 
Dear Historic Preservation Commissioners: 
 
Thank you for hearing the legislation initiating landmark designation for the Alexandria Theater. 
While it is my intent to move forward with the landmark designation, an appeal of the Notice of 
Violation for the property (5400 Geary) has been filed with the Board of Appeals. The appeal of 
the Notice of Violation is set for a hearing at the Board of Appeals for August 16, 2023. 
Therefore, I am respectfully requesting that this landmarking designation ordinance for the 
Alexandria Theater be continued to a future Historic Preservation Commission meeting.  
 
Before the landmark designation moves forward, I want to make sure the appeals process has 
been completed and my office has sufficient information on how to move forward with the 
landmarking legislation, without imposing undue hardship on the property owner of the 
Alexandria Theater.  
 
Thank you for your consideration and understanding. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Connie Chan 
District 1 Supervisor 
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September 19, 2023 

 

Dear Historic Preservation Commissioners: 

 

On Tuesday, September 19, the property owners of the Alexandria Theater, TimeSpace Group 

LLC, and I have agreed to explore a Development Agreement to develop the Theatre to 76 units 

of housing, with affordable housing units onsite, and efforts to preserve the history of the already 

deemed historically resourced Alexandria Theatre. It is my goal that the Development Agreement 

will also incorporate historic preservation recommendations based on the staff report provided by 

Shannon Ferguson, and I want to sincerely thank Shannon for her work in putting together the 

report and recommendations. 

 

Considering this agreement, I would like to request the Historic Preservation Commission 

continue the item to a date certain in November so my office and the property owners can 

continue to draft the Development Agreement together and present to you the information before 

you make the decision and recommendation on landmarking historic features for the Theatre. 

 

Thank you for your consideration and understanding. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Connie Chan 

District 1 Supervisor 
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